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WIOA Youth Provider RFP 
Questions and Answers 

 
Originally Posted – April 30th, 2020 

 
Updated - May 12, 2020 

 
1. Does the MassHire Greater Lowell Workforce Board have a list of the areas they have 

determined to be a designated “high poverty area”? 
 

The MassHire Greater Lowell Workforce Board does not identify the high poverty 
areas/census zones. The Census Bureau defines a “poverty area” as a census tract where at 
least 25% of the residents are economically disadvantaged.  To determine if a potential 
youth enrollee is low income based on current address,  youth programs can utilize the 
Poverty Threshold Census Tract Database. 

 
2. Can transportation to a work experience site be counted as work experience 

expenditure? 
 

Awaiting clarification from the MassHire Department of Career Services (*updated in the 
5/4/2020 updates below) 

 
3. When do you anticipate notifying providers about FY’21 awards?  

 
The tentative date bidders will be notified about funding is June 25th.  

 
4. For currently funded vendors, enrolled students are not currently able to test for 

their HiSET due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Would these youth be carry-ins? 
 

If a current vendor is refunded for FY’21, there will be flexibility due to the current 
circumstances.  The board will work with vendors on a one-on-one basis to determine 
carry-ins.  

 
5. Due to COVID-19, if you think that there will be more remote learning next year, 

should we structure our proposal to purchase computers for remote learning? 
 

If you forecast your program will move to more remote learning, you should structure your 
budget and proposal to accommodate how services will be provided remotely.  Computers 
will be an allowable expense.  

https://www.mass.gov/doc/poverty-threshold-census-tract-database/download
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6. Should we be planning for a contingency plan? Options regarding classroom and/or 
remote learning? 

 
Your proposal and budget should focus on how you plan to provide services to participants 
at this time. Due to the unique situation with the COVID-19 pandemic, we understand the 
need for programs to have flexibility.   

 
7. Is it still the same that out-of-school youth participants cannot participate in the 

Youthworks summer jobs program? 
 
The YouthWorks and Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) funding are 
completely separate. YouthWorks is state funded and WIOA is federal funding through the 
U.S. Department of Labor. Both WIOA in-school and out-of-school participants can apply to 
participate in the YouthWorks summer jobs program. 

 
8. Could you post how many programs and funding have been awarded in the past?  

 
(*updated in the 5/7/2020 updates below) 

 
9. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, do you anticipate any additional U.S Department of 

Labor youth funding becoming available? 
 

Answer: There could be additional federal youth funding, but not necessarily for WIOA 
youth.  The workforce board will provide updates as they become available.  

 
10. What is the role of MassHire Lowell Career Center for recruitment? 

 
Funded programs are responsible for their own recruitment. The MassHire Greater Lowell 
Workforce Board will post information about all funded programs on our website. All 
funded programs will work with the workforce board to coordinate tours of the career 
center to become familiar with the services available.  
 

11. Is it mandatory that the youth earn an “industry recognized credential?” For 
example, we often place people into the hospitality industry, which doesn’t have a 
credential.    

Each program needs to have a credential component either educational 
(HiSET/GED/Diploma/Post-Secondary) or an industry recognized credential.  
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12. Are in-house training programs acceptable for the job training portion? For example, 
we run a medication administration training program and a Certified Nursing 
Assistant training program. You would need to have a contract as a Training Vendor 
for a Certified Nursing Assistant.   

Yes.  In-house training programs that offer an industry recognized credential are 
acceptable.  

13. Can you please clarify the 5% limit to administration costs? What counts as 
“administrative” in this context?  

The limit for administration costs for the entire region is 10%.  To cover part of the 
workforce board’s administration costs, the board retains 5%.  The remainder goes out to 
the youth providers. The costs of administration are the costs associated with performing 
the following functions: 

(1) Performing the following overall general administrative functions and coordination of 
those functions under title I of WIOA: 

(i) Accounting, budgeting, financial and cash management functions; 
(ii) Procurement and purchasing functions; 
(iii) Property management functions; 
(iv) Personnel management functions; 
(v) Payroll functions; 
(vi) Coordinating the resolution of findings arising from audits, reviews, 
investigations and incident reports; 
(vii) Audit functions; 
(viii) General legal services functions; 
(ix) Developing systems and procedures, including information systems, required 
for these administrative functions; and 
(x) Fiscal agent responsibilities; 

(2) Performing oversight and monitoring responsibilities related to WIOA administrative 
functions; 
(3) Costs of goods and services required for administrative functions of the program, 
including goods and services such as rental or purchase of equipment, utilities, office 
supplies, postage, and rental and maintenance of office space; 
(4) Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out administrative activities; and 
(5) Costs of information systems related to administrative functions (for example, 
personnel, procurement, purchasing, property management, accounting, and payroll 
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systems) including the purchase, systems development and operating costs of such 
systems. 

14. If we work with in-school and out-of-school youth, do we need to complete 2 
separate proposals? Can the two groups of youth have joint programming?  

Yes. The in-school and out-of-school youth RFPs should be viewed as separate and will be 
evaluated as such. If a bidder wants to serve both in-school and out-of-school youth they 
would need to submit separate proposals.  

15. Can you please review the anticipated scale of contracts? How many awards do you 
anticipate giving out? Is there an expectation regarding how many youth will be 
served by each contract?  

It is anticipated the workforce board will fund out-of-school programs for a total of 
$320,000 and in-school programs for $60,000. In FY’20, we granted funding to four 
programs:  three out-of-school programs and one in-school program. There is no 
expectation on number of students, however, most funded programs serve between 10 and 
30 students. 

16. What is the expectation regarding total hours for the work experience/intern/job 
shadowing? Is there a minimum? How much of the program contract do you 
anticipate being allocated for funding this portion of the training?   

There is no minimum for the total hours of work experience. Both in-school and out-of-
school programs must dedicate at a minimum 20% of their total budget to work 
experience. For example, if you propose a total budget of $100,000 then a minimum of 
$20,000 of your budget must be dedicated to work experience activities including staff 
time. Work Experience guidelines are detailed in the RFP on pages 10 and 11 and on the 
PowerPoint,  presentation slides 22 and 23, both located on our website. 

Q&A updated 5/4/2020 

*Can transportation to a work experience site be counted as work experience expenditure? 
(updated answer from question #2 posted on 4/30/2020) 
 
Transportation is not an allowable expense under the work experience requirement. Please see 
page 15 in TEGL 21-16. Transportation would fall under supportive services on the program 
budget sheet.  Budgets have been updated on our website. 
 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/tegl-no-21-16-third-workforce-innovation-and-opportunity-act-wioa-title-i-youth-formula-program/download


 

5 
 

 
 
17. Can you youth be paid stipends or wages for attending workshops related to financial 
literacy and career readiness activities? 
 
Answer: Stipends can only be paid to youth for  attending “work experience” activities. Stipends 
are not allowed for activities under the other 13 elements. Youth may only be paid wages for 
activities listed under acceptable work experience activities: 

• Work experience placement at employer/agency 
• Youth attendance at work experience orientation 
• Internship developed by program 
• On-the-Job training developed by program 
• Pre-apprenticeship programs coordinated by program 
• Job shadowing developed by program 
• Company tours coordinated by program 
• Career Panels/Guest Speakers coordinated by program 

 
18. How many total hours of programming should be offered to WIOA Youth?   
 
There is no minimum or maximum, however, programs should be designed where enough time is 
dedicated to each student for earning a credential, creating an ISS (Career Plan), and partaking in 
the activities described in the 14 Elements. All of the activities were created so each youth leaves 
the program with an industry recognized credential, a set of goals to strive for, and enrollment 
into future education/training, or sustainable employment.  
 
Historically, for out-of-school youth, participants are in programming for at least 20 hours per 
week minimum. For in-school youth programs, most run after school every day for at least 2 
hours. Summer programming is a required component for both in-school and out-of-school 
programming.  

 
19. While the programming is year-round, do youth need to participate for an entire year? 
Or can we run multiple cycles of programming?  
 
Out-of-School Youth Programming - Youth do not need to participate for an entire year, however, 
youth need to participate in all programs long enough to ensure they are completing 10 of the 14 
elements as described in the RFP, in addition to creating an ISS,  exploring career pathways, 
setting goals, and completing all requirements to earn an industry recognized credential and 
achieve an outcome at exit. 
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In-School Youth Programming -  We strongly encourage students to be in programming for at least 
one school year. 

 
Rolling enrollment is accepted for both in-school and out-of-school programs. Multiple cycles of 
programming is allowed assuming each cycle is long enough for participants to partake in all 
required activities and obtain established outcomes.   

Q&A updated 5/7/2020 

 

*Could you post how many programs and funding have been awarded in the past?  
(updated  answer from question #8 posted on 4/30/2020) 
 

Funded Agency Funding FY20 Program # Youth Served 
Middlesex Community College $101,365 OSY – credentialing: HiSET 23 
CTI YouthBuild $55,050 OSY –credentialing: 

HiSET/Construction/Culinary 
12 

MassHire Lowell Career Center $117,110 OSY –credentialing: 
HiSET/various skills training 
options (CNA, CDL, HVAC @ 
offsite partners) 

15 

PALS Program @ Lowell High $50,000 ISY – credentialing: HS 
Diploma 

30 

 
 
20. Can you please clarify when a credential needs to be obtained by the youth within the 
program? Does the first year of programming only need to set up the pathway for 
credential attainment, whereby the credential is actually obtained in the second year?  
 
Credentials can be earned during programming or within one year after exiting the program. Each 
program design is unique and not all programs are one to years in length. There is no set time 
limit or timeframe for earning the credential, especially for HiSET/GED program participants since 
each youth works at his/her own pace and learning style. Occupational skills credentials are 
obtained based on skills learned and appropriate certification testing, and the timeframe is set by 
the program provider based on the design of the program.   
 
For information on how the credential attainment percentages are calculated, please see page 13 
in the RFP.  
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21.  Is the state-issued Medication Administration Program (MAP) certificate considered an 
industry recognized credential? Trainees must complete a minimum of 16 hours of training 
(and significantly more if they participate via IINE), and pass a state-issued knowledge 
exam and two skills exams in order to become certified? 
*Updated answer in the 5/12/2020 updates 

Q&A updated 5/12/2020 

* Is the state-issued Medication Administration Program (MAP) certificate considered an 
industry recognized credential? Trainees must complete a minimum of 16 hours of training 
(and significantly more if they participate via IINE), and pass a state-issued knowledge 
exam and two skills exams in order to become certified? 
(updated answer from question #21 posted on 5/7/2020) 
 
Yes, the state-issued Medication Administration Program (MAP) certificate is considered an 
industry recognized credential. 
 
22.  Which document(s) are needed to verify eligibility for a refugee/immigrant youth who 
has never attended high school in the U.S. and does not have access to his/her foreign 
diploma (or hasn't earned one)?  
 
A. First and foremost, U.S. Citizenship or Authorization to Work in the United States if a non-U.S. 
Citizen must be verified by one of the documents below (pg. 20 of Attachment C in the RFP): 
 

1.   U.S. Baptismal Certificate (if place of birth is shown) 
2.   U.S. Birth Certificate 

3.   U.S. Hospital Record of Birth  

4. U.S. Passport (either current or expired) 

5. Non-Restricted Social Security Card AND Government Issued Identification containing a 
photograph or information such as name, date of birth, gender, height, eye color, and address. 

6. Certificate of Naturalization (Form N-550 or N-570) 

7. Unexpired Alien Registration Card/Documents indicating authorization to work in the Unites States 
(INS Forms I-179, I-197, I-327, I-551, I-571, I-688, I-688A, I- 688B, I-766, an unexpired I-94 
Arrival/Departure form that includes an endorsement (stamped) of the individual’s status as 
authorized to work in the United States when accompanied with an unexpired temporary foreign 
passport that has the same name as the I-94, an unexpired temporary foreign passport stamped with 
an I-155 Work Authorization stamp 

8. Native American Tribal Document 
9. Printout from the Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements Program (SAVE) AND a Government 

Issued Identification containing a photograph or information such as name, date of birth, gender, 
height, eye color, and address. 
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B.  For documents to verify eligibility for a refugee/immigrant youth who has never attended high 
school in the U.S. and does not have access to his/her foreign diploma (or hasn't earned one):  
 
An Applicant Statement may be used if no other forms of documentation are available. The 
Applicant Statement must be supported with a corroborative contact or reliable witness (see 
Attachment C instruction by using link below) 
 
https://www.mass.gov/doc/dcs-policy-19-101-3-wioa-title-i-youth-eligibility/download 
 

 
23. Can the final proposals for the WIOA Youth RFP be physically dropped off at the 
MassHire Greater Lowell Workforce Board before 11:00AM on Friday, May 22nd? 
 
Final RFP proposals may be dropped off at the MassHire Greater Lowell Workforce Board starting 
on Thursday, May 21st , between 1:00PM and 4:00PM , and on Friday, May 22nd, between 8:30AM 
and 11:00AM. 
 
Please call Cathy Sturtevant at 978-337-7115 and she will come downstairs, pick them up and 
provide you with a time stamped receipt. 
 
If mailing, all documents must be received no later than 11:00 AM on May 22, 2020.   
 
Please see the RFP, pages 6 & 7, for submission requirements. 
 
 
24.  Does the Cover Sheet count in the 12-page narrative limit? 
 
No, the cover sheet does not count in the 12-page limit for the narrative. 
 
25.  Can we submit MOAs and Letters of Support with our application? For example, if a 
youth will be fulfilling a requirement with a partner organization, can we submit an MOAs 
with that organization as a supplement to our application?  
 
Yes, you can submit MOA’s and letters of support with your application. Please note, this is not a 
requirement and will not be included in the 12-page limit. Please ensure any partnering 
organizations are written into the narrative, the budget narrative and the budget if there is a cost 
associated with the partnership. 
 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/dcs-policy-19-101-3-wioa-title-i-youth-eligibility/download

